
  SELECT BOARD 
        AGENDA 

  Tuesday, January 4, 2022 
  7:00pm    

The Select Board Regular Meeting is being held virtually in accordance with legislation S. 2475, an act relative to 
extending certain COVID-19 measures adopted during the Covid Pandemic state of emergency. Interested individuals 
can listen in and participate by phone and/or online by following the link and phone # below. 

UpperTH ProWebinar is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 
Topic: Select Board  
Time: Jan 4, 2022 07:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84444532368?pwd=YVZ0a3FETEhjTWM0ZHdkNlJLYlB2QT09 

Meeting ID: 844 4453 2368 
Passcode: 870932 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kd5oG8AVhv 
+1 253 215 8782 US One tap mobile 
+1 301 715 8592 US +13126266799,,123906012# US (Chicago)

+19294362866,,12390012# US (New York)

Agenda Items 

1) Monty Tech Rep : (7:00)
a) Acknowledge resignation of Amy Morton
b) Appoint Jeanne Bartlett as new representative.

2) Discuss ARPA Consultant possibility with Finance Director (7:05)
3) Approve Minutes 12/7 (7:15)
4) Public Communication (7:20)
5) Staff Report/Updates (7:25)
6) Action/Discussion items:

a) Bromfield House – MOU/Lease follow-up (Erin McBee)
b) Update on Friendly Crossways
c) Discuss and act on the Code of Conduct
d) Review of Select Board Budgets and Overall Budget Changes

11) Select Board Reports

Next Regular Select Board Meeting 
    Tuesday, January 18, 2021 

7:00pm       

All times are approximate except for scheduled public hearings. 

Posted 12.30.2021 at 2:30pm by JAD























Select Board Minutes                                                            1                                                                        December 7, 2021 
 

Select Board Minutes  
Tuesday, December 7, 2021  

  7:00pm 
 
The Select Board Regular Meeting was held virtually in accordance with the Governor’s Executive 
Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law, G.L.c.30A. S.20.  

Select Board participants:    
Stu Sklar, Rich Maiore, Kara Minar, Erin McBee, Alice von Loesecke 
 
Town Department attendees:   
Town Administrator Tim Bragan, Executive Assistant Julie Doucet, Regional Assessor Mike Saltsman, 
Community & Economic Development Director Chris Ryan, DPW Director Tim Kilhart 
 
Additional participants: 
Frank Carlson, John Connell, Planning Board Chair Justin Brown, ZBA Chair Chris Tracey, Lucy Wallace, 
Michelle Girard, Terry Symula, Elizabeth David-Edwards, Wayne Beeson and John Mark Walker 
 
Public Hearing for the renewal of Carlson Orchards farmer series pouring permit  
Chair Stu Sklar announced this is a routine renewal hearing. Owner Frank Carlson was present along with 
his attorney John Connell. Carlson confirmed his Farmer Winery license from the state has been 
renewed. Town Administrator Tim Bragan reminded the Select Board that the Board of Health has 
specific occupancy limits based on title five requirements. Frank Carlson is aware of these limitations 
and will work directly with the Board of Health.  
 

Frank Carlson requested a change in hours. He asked for the liquor serving hours on Tuesday and 
Wednesday be extended to 8pm. He indicated these days are solely for private events and for those 
coming after regular work hours, say 4 or 5pm, an end time of 6pm was less desirable.   
 

Questions/Comments from the public 
Kerri Green, Oak Hill Road, asked if the request to change the hours should have been included in the 
legal notice. Bragan said the board has the ability to revise the license conditions during this hearing 
however Executive Assistant Julie Doucet did confirm she was never made aware of any requests for 
changes from the license holder prior to this evening. As a direct neighbor, Green does not support a 
change in hours. 
  
Beth Williams spoke in favor of the license being renewed will the additional hours requested for private 
events. In her opinion, Carlson Orchards has done a great job during Covid to pivot on operations as 
needed.  
 

Select Board Deliberation 
As part of the renewal process for the orchard, the Select Board members reviewed the current 
conditions and discussed the request to extend hours on Tuesday and Wednesday. The board members 
agreed the conditions for the liquor license should not be confused with operations during the picking 
season. Kara Minar questioned if the increase in hours may create a more intensive use on Tuesdays and 
Wednesdays. Erin McBee admitted she was uncertain about agreeing to the extension in hours. The 



Select Board Minutes                                                            2                                                                        December 7, 2021 
 

members decided if the time is extended to 8pm on Tuesday and Wednesday then it must be specific  
for private events only.  
 

After more discussion they decided on the following amended conditions: 
• Alcoholic beverages may be served between the hours of 11:00AM and 8:00PM on Tuesdays  

and Wednesdays for private events only. 
• The licensed premises must comply with the occupancy designation and limit, as determined 

by the Town’s Board of Health and the Town’s Building Commissioner in accordance with the 
Massachusetts State Building Code. 

• At all times and when any events occur where there will be an estimated 100 or more 
attendees/participants on the licensed premise, a police detail shall be arranged in advance. 

 
By a roll call vote, Minar – aye, McBee – nay, Maiore – aye, von Loesecke – aye, Sklar – aye, the board 
voted to approve license conditions as amended. (4-1) 
 

Tax Classification Hearing  
Associate Regional Assessor Mike Saltsman said each year the Select Board holds a hearing to determine 
the percentage of the Town’s property tax levy to be borne by each property class. Saltsman reviewed 
the valuations by class and the summary of assessments. He noted Harvard is primarily residential 
therefore it would take a large shift to yield a modest residential tax reduction. He highlighted property 
values have increased in response to the rising housing market. The Town Assessor recommends that 
the Select Board adopt a single tax rate to be applied across all classes of property in Harvard.   
 

By a roll call vote, von Loesecke – aye, Minar – aye, Maiore – aye, McBee – aye, Sklar –aye, the Harvard 
Select Board voted unanimously in accordance with M.G.L., Ch. 40, Sec. 56, as amended, the percentage 
of local tax levy which will be borne by each class of real and personal property, relative to setting the 
Fiscal Year 2022 tax rates and set the Residential Factor at 1.0, with a corresponding CIP shift of 1.0, 
pending approval of the town’s annual tax recap by the Massachusetts Department of Revenue 
 

Ayer Road Vision Plan – Phase 1 RFP Process 
Community & Economic Director Chris Ryan and Planning Board Chair Justin Brown came to provide an 
update and recommendation on which firm to contract with for the market analysis. Brown reported 
two firms’ submitted proposals.  
 

Brown outlined the process followed: 
• Conducted review of each proposal 
• Administered preliminary written questions to each respondent 
• Interviewed each respondent on virtual platform 
• Sent follow up questions to each respondent 
• Contacted at least four references for each respondent 

 
The review team recommends Harvard contract with The Chesapeake Group TCG/Tischler-Bise.  
This firm has an extensive track record with small- and medium-sized municipalities for similar municipal 
work, extensive experience conducting fiscal impact analyses for cities and towns and they have 
received glowing reviews from references. ZBA Chair Chris Tracey served on the review team and was 
extremely pleased with the process. He complimented the efforts of those working on behalf of the 
town. Tracey mentioned this is an opportunity to do something phenomenal.  



Select Board Minutes                                                            3                                                                        December 7, 2021 
 

The Select Board members thanked Ryan, Tracey and Brown for their efforts. By a roll call vote, Maiore – 
aye, McBee – aye, Minar – aye, von Loesecke – aye, Sklar – aye, the board voted unanimously to support 
recommendation from the Planning Board to hire The Chesapeake Group. 
 

DPW facility space and needs assessment   
DPW Director Tim Kilhart came to review the report completed by CBT Inc. The study included 
evaluation of existing conditions, code requirements, analysis, recommendations, project priorities & 
alternates and a schedule/cost estimates. Kilhart has been consulting with the Permanent Building 
Committee in an effort to decide where this project fits best in the larger capital plan. He said this 
project was initially added into the plan by his predecessor. The Select Board members were not 
surprised by the findings in the report. Kara Minar advocated for involvement by the Energy Advisory 
Committee on this project. By a roll call vote, McBee – aye, von Loesecke – aye, Maiore – aye, Minar – 
aye, Sklar – aye, the board voted unanimously to move project to the Capital Planning & Investment 
Committee.  
 

Update on Nashua, Squannacook & Nissitissit Rivers Wild & Scenic Stewardship Council  
Harvard representatives Lucy Wallace and Michelle Girard came to share a report highlighting the 
accomplishments of the council over the past year. Wallace announced the council will be offering the 
grant program again this year. She strongly encouraged organizations in Harvard to apply. Michelle 
Girard said there is quite a range of opportunities. Wallace spoke briefly about the Forest Legacy 
application that was submitted to the Federal Forest Legacy Program. They were able to identify almost 
2,500 acres for protection. She said people can learn more about their efforts by visiting their website.  
https://www.wildandscenicnashuarivers.org/ 
 
Update on thickly settled areas in town (Attachment A) 
Volunteer Peter Dorward shared the zones he has identified as thickly settled. The definition for thickly 
settled or a business district: territory contiguous to any way which is built up with structures devoted to 
business, or the territory contiguous to any way where the dwelling houses are situated at such 
distances as will average less than two hundred feet between them for a distance of a quarter of a mile 
or over. Dorward worked with Richard Wilson from the Dept. of Transportation. By a roll call vote, Minar 
– aye, McBee – aye, Maiore – aye, von Loesecke – aye, Sklar –aye, the board voted unanimously to 
approve thickly settled areas for those noted in the analysis done by Peter Dorward with the value zero 
in allowed zone length. 
 

Public Communication  
Wade Holztman, Bolton Road, said speed continues to be an issue on Bolton Road. He has spoken with 
Acting Chief Babu who plans to place a speed sign in front of his home in the spring. He has noticed 
officers an increase in officer presence.   
 

Sharon Cronin, Slough Road, offered her support and encouraged the Select Board to vote in support of 
the use of the Bromfield House for Afghan refugees.  
 

Bev Rodrigues, Old Littleton Road, asked the Select Board members to affirm the vote taken at the 
special town election to preserve the Bromfield House. She requested time on the Select Board agenda 
to discuss this further. She urged the board to affirm this vote assuring town’s people their commitment 
to sell the Bromfield House.  
 



Select Board Minutes                                                            4                                                                        December 7, 2021 
 

Lucy Wallace, Orchard Hill Road, suggested a closer look at Orchard Hill per the thickly settled material 
provided.  
 

Pete Jackson, Bromfield Trustee, said the Bromfield House is not in compliance with the court decree 
which requires educational purposes for the use of that building. Once the school administration offices 
vacated the building the appropriate usage was negated. Jackson stated if the Select Board continues to 
delay on disposition or takes action not within the guidelines the trustees will take action against the 
town. He said the proposal for use of the Bromfield House for Afghan refugees would not comply with 
the court decree. The trustees will work with the Select Board to move the process of selling the 
property as a private residence along.  
 
Harvard Neighborhood Support Team (NST) & Afghan Refugee resettlement  
Request to lease Bromfield House 
Resident Terry Symula explained NST and Ascentria Care Alliance have partnered to meet this need in 
Massachusetts, New Hampshire, and the greater New England areas by pioneering an innovative 
resettlement model built around the formation of Neighborhood Support Teams (NSTs). Powered by the 
generosity of our communities, each NST is composed of 20-30 volunteers who welcome and support 
one Afghan family in their community under the guidance of an Ascentria case manager. Symula is 
compelled to help and find a way to make this happen in Harvard and thought the Bromfield House 
could be a perfect option. She is working with Elizabeth David-Edwards and Wayne Beeson. David-
Benson has worked in refugee resettlement most of her career and provided more details on how the 
NST program works. Wayne Beeson evaluated the Bromfield House in order to gain a sense of what 
improvements will be necessary. The Select Board members were open to the idea however a lease of 
town property would require a special town meeting. Another question falls with the legalities of what is 
an allowable use for this property. Board members asked questions about how long the Bromfield 
House would be needed and how would transportation work with the refugees. Symula assured the 
board that all the logistics pertaining to the Afghan family would be handled by NST. Everyone agreed 
not having the building vacant is a positive as well. In addition, Bragan noted the need for the 
Water/Sewer Commission to approve an increase in flow for this building from office space to living 
quarters which requires proof it is a demonstrable benefit. This would need to be done regardless if the 
building is leased or sold as a private residence. The board instructed Bragan to consult with legal 
counsel on this concept and they will revisit this at their December 21st meeting. 
 

Staff Report and updates (Attachment B) 
 

Due to the late hour the board decided to move the following items to their December 21st meeting: 
• Approve minutes of 11/9 & 11/16 (8:15) 
• Finalize liquor license conditions for the Bowling Alley and vote to issue license for 2022 
• Review and discuss draft charge for Climate Resiliency Action Committee 

 

Community Preservation Committee appointment 
By a roll call vote, Minar – aye, McBee – aye, Maiore – aye, von Loesecke – aye, Sklar – aye, the board 
voted unanimously to appoint John Mark Walker to the Community Preservation Committee. 
 

Update on Police Chief Search 
Tim Bragan announced there are six finalists and the committee recommends strongly advancing two for 



Select Board Minutes                                                            5                                                                        December 7, 2021 
 

final interviews. By a roll call vote, Minar – aye, McBee – aye, Maiore – aye, von Loesecke – aye,  
Sklar – aye, the board voted unanimously to advance two qualified nominees for Police Chief.  
 

The meeting was adjourned at 10:10pm 

 

Documents referenced: 
Carlson Orchards conditions – dated August 2021 
Hearing notice – dated 11.19.2021 
Tax Classification Hearing material – dated 12.7.2021 
Ayer Road Vision Plan – dated 12.7.21 
DPW Facility Report – dated 11.3.2021 
Wild & Scenic update – dated November 2021 
NST handout – December 2021 
Thickly Settled material – dated 12.6.2021 (Attachment B) 
Walker vol form – dated 11.18.2021 



Page 1 of 3 
 

 

 
 
 

CODE OF CONDUCT 
FOR ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS 

 
I. Purpose 
 
The following policy sets forth guidelines to serve as a template for maintaining high levels of public 
confidence by demonstrating professionalism and mutual respect among members of boards, committees 
and commissions in the Town of Harvard.  
 
Ideally all board and committee members will strive at every meeting, forum, or other official interaction to 
treat each person fairly and with respect, regardless of any differences of opinion.  
 
This policy provides a centralized standard of conduct for all elected and appointed officials in the Town.  
 
II. Applicability 

 
This policy and its sections will apply to all elected and appointed officials acting on behalf of the Town, and 
covers their actions and communications (whether spoken or written) including but not limited to all 
electronic communications including social media. 
 
III. Code of Conduct 

 
All elected and appointed officials are expected to act honestly, conscientiously, reasonably, and in good 
faith at all times regarding their responsibilities, the interests of the Town, and the welfare of its residents.  
 
Elected and appointed officials must refrain from communicating or acting in a disrespectful, abusive 
and/or threatening manner towards members of the community, other elected or appointed officials, the 
Town Administrator or Town Staff.  
 
Moreover, all elected and appointed officials must fully comply with the Town’s Anti-Harassment and Anti-
Discrimination Policy.  
 
A. Conduct generally and in relation to the Community 

 Be well informed concerning the local and State duties of a board/committee member. 
 Never purport to represent the opinion of your board/committee except when specifically 

authorized by a recorded vote to do so. 
 Accept your position as a means of unselfish public service, not to benefit personally, 

professionally, or financially from your position. 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 Recognize that the chief function of local government at all times is to serve the best 
interests of the community. 

 Demonstrate respect for the public that you serve. 
 Safeguard confidential information. 
 Conduct yourself so as to maintain public confidence in our local government. 
 Unless specifically exempted, conduct the business of the public in a manner that promotes 

open and transparent government. 
 Comply as fully as possible with all Town policies and applicable laws, including 

Anti-harassment and Anti-discrimination Policy 
Anti-fraud Policy 
The Open Meeting Law 
Procurement Laws (G.L. c.30B, G.L. c 30 s. 39M, G.L. c.149) 
The Ethics/Conflict of Interest Statute (G.L. c.268A) 
 

B. Conduct in relation to other elected and appointed officials 
 Treat all members of your board/committee with respect despite differences of opinion; 

keeping in mind that professional respect does not preclude honest differences of opinion, 
but requires respect within those differences. 

 Participate and interact in official meetings with dignity and decorum. 
 Recognize your responsibility to attend all meetings to assure a quorum, and promptly notify 

the Chair should you be unable or unwilling to continue serving. Submit formal notice to 
resign via written notification to the Town Clerk. 

 Recognize that action at official legal meetings is binding and that you alone cannot bind the 
board/committee outside of meetings. 

 Refrain from making statements or promises as to how you will vote on matters that will 
come before the board/committee until you have had an opportunity to hear the pros and 
cons of the issue during a public meeting. 

 Uphold the intent of executive session and respect the privileged communication that exists 
in executive session. 

 Make decisions only after all facts on a question have been presented and discussed. 
 

C. Conduct in relation to the Town Administrator 
 Recognize and support the administrative chain of command and refuse to act on 

complaints as an individual outside the administration. 
 Give the Town Administrator full responsibility for discharging their disposition/solutions. 
 Refrain from giving orders or directions to the Town Administrator for action as an 

individual board/committee member. 
 Refrain from providing information to the Town Administrator that you would not be 

willing to share with other board/committee members. 
 

D. Conduct in relation to Town staff 
 Treat all staff as professionals and respect the abilities and experience of each individual.  



Page 3 of 3 
 

 Do not publicly criticize an individual employee or a department, but instead raise any 
concerns about staff performance to the Town Administrator through private 
communication.  

 Refrain from giving instructions to or requesting assistance from Town staff but rather 
channel all such activities and requests through the Town Administrator. 

 Understand that employees should not be expected to take direction from any individual 
official on any matter. 
 

IV. Distribution and Education 
 
The Town Clerk shall provide a copy of this policy, the Town’s Anti-harassment and Anti-discrimination 
policy, and the Anti-fraud policy to all elected and appointed officials upon the subsequent appointment or 
re-appointment of any individual.  
 
Each individual shall sign a statement that they have read this policy and will comply with all requirements 
set forth in this policy. In the event that any member declines to sign the form, that fact shall be noted by 
the Town Clerk on the form.  
 
V. Implementation 
 
In addition to any other remedies or administration options available under the law1 each board/committee 
may vote to censure any elected member, and the appointing authority may decline to reappoint an 
individual who violates any provision of this Code of Conduct.  
 
If any elected or appointed official is accused of violating the Code of Conduct or the Anti-harassment and 
Anti-discrimination Policy, the Town Administrator shall refer the matter for investigation to the contact 
named in the Anti-harassment and Anti-discrimination policy or a disinterested outside firm/individual 
qualified to investigate the alleged conduct.  
 
The Town Administrator shall not be obliged to obtain any additional authority; this Code shall be sufficient 
authority. The firm or individual to whom the matter is referred shall promptly investigate the matter and 
report back findings of fact and recommendations to the Town Administrator. The Town Administrator 
will share the reported findings and recommendations with the elected official’s board/committee. The 
board/committee shall then take such action as is authorized by law and as it deems fit in response to the 
matter. 

 
1 https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartIV/TitleI/Chapter268A 




